

Rookery Community Development District

Board of Supervisors' Meeting June 10, 2025

District Office: 2806 N. Fifth Street Unit 403 St. Augustine, FL 32084

Professionals in Community Management

ROOKERY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

City of Green Cove Springs City Hall 321 Walnut Street Green Cove Springs, FL 32043

Board of Supervisors	Bob Porter John Gislason Anthony Sharp Mark Dearing Greg Matovina	Chairman Vice Chairman Assistant Secretary Assistant Secretary Assistant Secretary
District Manager	Lesley Gallagher	Rizzetta & Company, Inc.
District Counsel	Katie Buchanan	Kutak Rock, LLP
District Engineer	Vince Dunn	Dunn & Associates

All cellular phones must be placed on mute while in the meeting room.

The Audience Comments portion, **on Agenda Items Only**, will be held at the beginning of the meeting. The Audience Comments portion of the agenda, **on General Items**, will be held at the end of the meeting. During these portions of the agenda, audience members may make comments on matters that concern the District (CDD) and will be limited to a total of three (3) minutes to make their comments.

Pursuant to provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring special accommodations to participate in this meeting/hearing/workshop is asked to advise the District Office at least forty-eight (48) hours before the meeting/hearing/workshop by contacting the District Manager at (239) 936-0913. If you are hearing or speech impaired, please contact the Florida Relay Service by dialing 7-1-1, or 1-800-955-8771 (TTY) 1-800-955-8770 (Voice), who can aid you in contacting the District Office.

A person who decides to appeal any decision made at the meeting/hearing/workshop with respect to any matter considered at the meeting/hearing/workshop is advised that person will need a record of the proceedings and that accordingly, the person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made including the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

ROOKERY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

District Office · St. Augustine, Florida · (904) 436-6270 Mailing Address – 3434 Colwell Avenue, Suite 200, Tampa, Florida 33614

Board of Supervisors Rookery Community Development District June 2, 2025

FINAL AGENDA

Dear Board Members:

The meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Rookery Community Development District will be held on June 10, 2025 at 1:00 p.m. at the City of Green Cove Springs City Hall, 321 Walnut Street, Green Cove Springs, FL 32043.

- 1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL
- AUDIENCE COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS 2.

3. **BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION**

- Consideration of the Minutes of the Board of Supervisors' Α. Meeting held on May 13, 2025.....Tab 1
- Ratification of Operation and Maintenance Expenditures for Β. April 2025......Tab 2

4. **Staff Reports**

- **District Counsel** Α.
- Β. **District Engineer**
- C. **District Manager**

Business Items 5.

- Α. Consideration of Responses to Landscape & irrigation Maintenance RFP(Proposals under separate cover)......Tab 3
- **Supervisor Requests and Audience Comments** 6.

7. Adjournment

We look forward to seeing you at the meeting. In the meantime, if you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call us at 904-436-6270.

Very truly yours,

Lesley Gallagher District Manager

Tab 1

1			
2 3 4 5 6	Each person who decides to appeal any decision made by the Board with respect to any matter considered at the meeting is advised that the person may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, including the testimony and evidence upon which such appeal is to be based.		
7		ROOKERY	
8 9	COM	ROOKERY AUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT	
10	COM		
11 12 13 14		of Supervisors of Rookery Community Development District was n. at Green Cove Springs City Hall, 321 Walnut Street, 2nd ve Springs, FL 32043.	
15 16 17	Present and constituting a	quorum:	
18 19 20	John Gislason Mark Dearing Anthony Sharp	Board Member, Vice Chairman Board Member, Assistant Secretary Board Member, Assistant Secretary	
21 22 23	Also present were:		
24 25	Lesley Gallagher Katie Buchanan	District Manager, Rizzetta & Company, Inc. District Counsel, Kutak Rock (via phone)	
26 27 28	No audience members present.		
29 30 31	FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS	CALL TO ORDER	
32 33	Mr. Gislason opened the Board of	f Supervisors' meeting at 1:02 p.m.	
34 35	SECOND ORDER OF BUSINES	S AUDIENCE COMMENTS ON AGENDA ITEMS	
36	There were no audience member	s present.	
37			
38			
39 40			
40 41			
42			
43			
44			
45			
46			
47			
48 49			
セン			

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS

CONSIDERATION OF THE MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS' MEETING HELD ON MARCH 11, 2025

RATIFICATION OF OPERATION AND

FEBRUARY & MARCH 2025

MAINTENANCE EXPENDITURES FOR

On a motion by Mr. Dearing, seconded by Mr. Sharp, with all in favor, the Board approved the minutes of the March 11 Board of Supervisors Meeting for Rookery Community Development District.

57 58

50

51 52

59

60

00

61

62

63

64

65

On a motion by Mr. Dearing, seconded by Mr. Sharp, with all in favor, the Board ratified the

On a motion by Mr. Dearing, seconded by Mr. Sharp, with all in favor, the Board ratified the operation and maintenance expenditures for February 2025 in the amount of \$63.45 and March 2025 in the amount of \$0.00 for Rookery Community Development District.

66 67

69

70

71

72

73

74 75

76

77

68 FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS

STAFF REPORTS

A. DISTRICT COUNSEL

Ms. Buchanan did not have a specific report but was available for questions.

B. DISTRICT ENGINEER

The District Engineer was not requested to attend.

C. DISTRICT MANAGER

1.) PRESENTATION OF REGISTERED VOTER COUNT

Ms. Gallagher updated the Board that the website was now up and running as rookerycdd.org.
 She also noted that the Supervisor of Elections office had confirmed that there were zero
 registered voters within the district as of April 15, 2025.

82 SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS

83 84 85

RATIFICATION OF REQUISITION CR4 SERIES 2024

On a motion by Mr. Dearing, seconded by Mr. Sharp, with all in favor, the Board ratified requisition CR 4, Series 2024 in the amount of \$2,285,723.22 for Rookery Community Development District.

86 87

88 89 90 SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS **RATIFICATION OF FISCAL YEAR 2023/24** FINANCIAL AUDIT FROM MAY 7. 2024 91 **THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2024** 92 93 94 On a motion by Mr. Dearing, seconded by Mr. Sharp, with all in favor, the Board ratified the acceptance of the Fiscal Year 2024/2025 audit for Rookery Community Development District. 95 96 97 EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS PRESENTATION OF FISCAL YEAR 98 2025/2026 PROPOSED BUDGET 99 100 Ms. Gallagher reviewed the proposed budget for fiscal year 2025/26 which she noted she had previously reviewed with the Chairman and reflected a targeted assessment with a developer 101 contribution. Discussion ensued regarding an adjustment to the time of the August meeting at 102 which the public hearing would be held. 103 104 1.) CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION 2025-02; APPROVING PROPOSED 105 106 **BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2025/26 & SETTING PUBLIC HEARING** 107 108 On a motion by Mr. Dearing, seconded by Mr. Sharp, with all in favor, the Board adopted Resolution 2025-02 approving the proposed budget as presented and set the public hearing date for August 12, 2025 at 3:00 p.m. at the City of Green Cove Springs location of 321 Walnut Street, Green Cove Springs, Florida 32043 for Rookery Community Development District. 109 110 111 NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS SUPERVISOR REQUESTS AND AUDIENCE 112 COMMENTS 113 114 115 There were no supervisor requests and no audience present. 116 117 TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS ADJOURNMENT 118 119 120 On a motion by Mr. Dearing, seconded by Mr. Sharp, with all in favor, the Board adjourned the meeting at 1:08 p.m., for the Rookery Community Development District. 121

122

123

_		
	Secretary/Assistant Secretary	Chairman/Vice Chairman

Tab 2

ROOKERY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

DISTRICT OFFICE · St. Augustine, Florida 32084 MAILING ADDRESS · 3434 Colwell Avenue, Suite 200 · Tampa, Florida 33614 www.rookerycdd.org

Operation and Maintenance Expenditures April 2025 For Board Approval

Attached please find the check register listing the Operation and Maintenance expenditures paid from April 1, 2025 through April 30, 2025. This does not include expenditures previously approved by the Board.

The total items being presented: **\$16,497.63**

Approval of Expenditures:

_____ Chairperson

_____ Vice Chairperson

_____ Assistant Secretary

Rookery Community Development District

Paid Operation & Maintenance Expenditures

April 1, 2025 Through April 30, 2025

Vendor Name	Check Number	Invoice Number	Invoice Description	Invoi	ce Amount
Clay Today	300019	2025-294922	Account# 68156 Legal Advertising 02/25	\$	62.10
Grau & Associates, P.A.	300020	27063	Audit FY23/24	\$	2,000.00
John Gislason	300021	JG031125	Board of Supervisors Meeting 03/11/25	\$	200.00
Kutak Rock, LLP	300022	3526765	Legal Services 12/24	\$	522.01
Mark Dearing	300023	MD031125	Board of Supervisors Meeting 03/11/25	\$	200.00
Phil Lentsch	300024	39983	Rookery CDD Book 03/25	\$	63.51
Rizzetta & Company, Inc.	300025	INV0000096850	District Management Fees 02/25	\$	4,416.67
Rizzetta & Company, Inc.	300026	INV0000097465	District Management Fees 03/25	\$	4,416.67
Rizzetta & Company, Inc.	300028	INV0000098310	District Management Fees 04/25	\$	4,416.67
Robert Porter	300027	BP031125	Board of Supervisors Meeting 03/11/25	\$	200.00

Report Total

\$ 16,497.63

Tab 3

LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION MAINTENANCE RFP PROPOSALS WILL BE CIRCULATED UNDER SEPARATE COVER

ROOKERY CDD REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR LANDSCAPE AND IRRIGATION MAINTENANCE SERVICES

The Rookery Community Development District ("The District") is seeking proposals for Landscape and Irrigation Maintenance Services. Rookery CDD covers approximately 566 acres of land with a general location north of First Coast Expressway, west of US 17 and east of CR 15A within the City of Green Cove Springs. Included in this request for proposals is the attached "Scope of Service". Proposals are to be emailed to the District Manager, Lesley Gallagher at Lgallagher@rizzetta.com no later than noon on June 6, 2025. The Rookery CDD Board will consider proposals at their regular meeting to be held on June 10, 2025. Questions or clarifications may be directed to Lesley Gallagher via email. All questions and clarifications should be received no later than Monday, June 2, 2025. Please confirm receipt of your proposal and any questions submitted (904) 436-6270.

PLEASE RETURN A COPY OF THE SCOPE OF SERVICE WITH EACH PAGE INITAILLED BY THE BOTH THE BRANCH AND ACCOUNT MANAGER WITH YOUR PROPOSAL.

Rookery CDD SCOPE OF SERVICES

PART 1

GENERAL LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE

1) **MOWING** – All grass areas will be mowed on the following schedule:

MARCH 1 – NOVEMBER 1 – Once a week NOVEMBER 1 – MARCH 1 – Once every two weeks

This schedule estimates that there will be between 41 – 45 cuts annually based on standard growing periods in Florida, however, requires a minimum of 52 visits (weekly) to perform those duties, other than mowing, that cannot remain unattended for two weeks. (i.e., weed control, selective mowing, debris clearing, and general detailing of property, etc.) Notwithstanding the above, at no time will the grass (or weeds within turf) be allowed to grow beyond a maximum height of five (5) inches. Each mowing should leave the St. Augustine & Bahia grass at a height of three and one half (3 1/2) to four (4) inches. Rotary Mowers are preferred for heights above one (1) inch. Do not remove more than 1/3 of the height of the leaf blade at anyone mowing. All blades shall be kept sharp at all times to provide a high-quality cut and to minimize disease. The DISTRICT requires mowers to be equipped with a mulching type deck. Clippings may be left on the lawn if no readily visible clumps remain on the grass after mowing. Otherwise large clumps of clippings MUST either be collected and removed by the CONTRACTOR OR be left to dry out on the lawn for no more than one day and then re-distributed across the lawn. And the mulching kit must be left in the "closed" position at all times, specifically when mowing pond banks and all parks. Additionally, when mowing pond banks, mowers must be used in a counter clock direction. This is to re-introduce nutrients in the clippings back into the soil system. In case of fungal disease outbreaks, the clippings will be collected until the disease is under control. Contractor will be responsible for line-trimming these areas during each and every mow event. Contractor is to include in his proposal, any and all necessary equipment, protective clothing or any other gear necessary for crews to perform this work. No "extras" will be billed to the District. The CONTRACTOR shall restore any noticeable damage caused by the CONTRACTOR'S mowing equipment within twenty-four hours from the time the damage is caused at his sole cost and expense. Contractor shall be responsible for training all its personnel in the technical aspects of the District's Landscape Maintenance Program and general horticultural practices. This training will also include wetland species identification as it relates to lake banks & wetland areas. The Contractor shall be held responsible for all damage to wetlands, littoral shelves, mitigation areas and uplands due to mowing/fertilizing, etc. Weekend work is permitted when necessary upon prior approval.

1A) **POND MOWING -** All ponds identified as such on the overall the DISTRICT Maintenance Exhibit shall be mowed incorporating the same mowing schedule as the common areas stated above. Line trimming at Bridge entrances water's edge, control structures, mitered end sections and any other storm water structures shall occur each and every time the pond is mowed. Each mowing shall leave the grass at a height of four (4) to four and one half $(4\frac{1}{2})$ inches. This is slightly higher than the mow height in common area Bahia plantings in flatter areas to minimize pond bank erosion. Pond banks will be mowed and trimmed to water's edge. Careful attention must be paid to mower height on pond banks so as not to scalp at the crest of the lake bank and increase the chances for pond bank erosion. Also, when line trimming to water's edge, Contractor shall be extremely careful not to scalp at the water's edge also increasing chances of pond bank erosion. Line trimming height shall be the same as mowing height (if not slightly higher). Contractor shall be careful to keep trimmings from entering water. Excessive clippings shall be hand removed. Mowers must blow all clippings away from pond banks. It is understood that trash debris of any kind and other debris within arm's reach of water's edge shall be removed & disposed of by Contractor during every normal service event.

2) EDGING AND TRIMMING – All hard-edged areas (curbs, sidewalks, bike paths, trails, etc.) shall be vertically edged at each and every mowing event and soft-edged areas (tree rings, shrub and groundcover bed lines) shall be edged a minimum of every other week. All edging shall be performed to the sole satisfaction of the DISTRICT. Chemical edging shall not be permitted anywhere on property.

AT NO TIME SHALL LAWN BE ALLOWED TO GROW IN AN UNSIGHTLY MANNER. SHOULD THIS OCCUR, CONTRACTOR AGREES TO CORRECT WITHIN TWENTY-FOUR HOURS OF NOTICE BY DISTRICT. CONTRACTOR SHALL COMPLETE ALL LAWN MAINTENANCE ACTIVITIES (MOWING, EDGING, LINE TRIMMING, BLOWING OFF SIDEWALKS, DRIVEWAYS, CURB & GUTTERS, ETC.) IN RELATIVELY SMALL, MANAGEABLE SECTIONS. CONTRACTOR IS NOT TO LEAVE GRASS CLIPPINGS, TRIMMED WEEDS, TURF, DIRT OR DEBRIS ON ANY SURFACES FOR MORE THAN TWO HOURS. PARK SITES, CLUBHOUSES, PARKING LOTS AND ALL OTHER HIGH TRAFFIC AMENITIES ON THE PROPERTY SHALL BE CLEANED UP IMMEDIATELY AFTER MOWING AND EDGING TAKES PLACE. IF A MOWING EVENT IS MISSED, EVERY EFFORT SHALL BE MADE TO PERFORM THE MOWING SERVICE THE SAME WEEK (INCLUDING SATURDAYS WITH PRIOR APPROVAL). IF THIS IS NOT POSSIBLE. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE THE DISTRICT A CREDIT FOR FUTURE SERVICES OR ADD A MOWING EVENT TO BE PROVIDED AT A LATER DATE. THE DISTRICT SHALL DETERMINE WHETHER THE CREDIT OR EXTRA MOWING SHALL BE USED.

3) **TREE AND SHRUB CARE** – All deciduous trees shall be pruned when dormant to ensure proper uniform growth. All evergreen trees shall be pruned in

the early summer and fall to ensure proper growth and proper head shape. Sucker growth at the base of the trees shall be removed by hand continuously throughout the year. Aesthetic pruning shall consist of the removal of dead and/or broken branches as often as necessary to have trees appear neat at all times. Branches will be pruned just outside the branch collar. Contractor is responsible for the removal of all branches and limbs up to a 4" diameter and up to a 15' height to keep them from encroaching onto buildings (including roofs), signage structures, play structures, fences & walls, as well as pruned to prevent street lights and traffic signage from being blocked. Additionally, trees shall be pruned over sidewalks, nature trails, parking lots and roadways so as not to interfere with pedestrians or cars. (This is to include maintaining at all times a minimum of ten to fifteen (10-15) feet of clearance under all limbs depending on location and species of tree but shall vary according to DOT specs.) All moss hanging from trees (as well as all ball moss) shall be removed up to a height of 15' from all trees on an as-needed basis. However, during the dormant season, ALL Crape Myrtles shall have ALL mosses removed from the entire tree regardless of height. Crape Myrtles are not to be "hat racked" at any time. Pencil pruning is the preferred method of Crape Myrtle pruning and should be performed after threat of frost has passed. The initial removal of all Spanish and Ball Mosses shall be completed within ninety (90) days of contract commencement.

All shrubs will be pruned as necessary to retain an attractive shape and fullness, removing broken or dead limbs as necessary to provide a neat and clean appearance. Shrubs shall not be clipped into balled or boxed forms unless such forms are required by design. Shrubs shall be pruned in accordance with the intended function of the plant in its present location. Flowering shrubs shall be pruned immediately after the blossoms have cured with top pruning restricted to shaping the terminal growth. All pruning shall be done with horticultural skill and knowledge to maintain an overall acceptable appearance consistent with the current aesthetics of the DISTRICT. The Contractor agrees that pruning is an art that must be done under the supervision of a highly trained foreman and shall make provisions for such supervision. Individual plants pruned into rounded balls or unnatural shapes will not be allowed. Contractor shall sterilize all pruning equipment prior to pruning the next shrub grouping; particularly when fungal diseases are known to be present. All clippings and debris from pruning will be carted away at the time pruning takes place. It is of utmost importance that all plant material within clear site lines and visibility triangles at roadway intersections and medians is maintained at or below the required heights. It is the Contractor's responsibility to bring to the attention of the District all areas that are not in compliance. If pruning will bring the area into compliance, then the Contractor, after conferring with District's representative, will proceed with the pruning activity. However, if pruning will NOT bring the area into compliance, perhaps due to permanent existing grades, then another solution will need to be proposed and executed. Contractor will also be responsible to keep mulch pulled away from the base of ALL landscape lights at ALL times, not just after a mulching event. This is specific to LED with circuit boards in base.

AREAS WHERE WETLANDS ARE ADJACENT TO TURF AREAS (WHETHER ALONG ROADWAYS OR LAKE BANKS) CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO KEEP ALL

WETLAND MATERIAL CUT BACK AT ALL TIMES AND NOT LET THIS MATERIAL REDUCE THE SIZE OF THE TURF AREA.

Palms: All palms (regardless of height) shall receive pruning as often as necessary to appear neat and clean at all times. This includes the removal of brown and/or broken fronds and inflorescence. Removal of green or even yellowing fronds is unnecessary and pruning palms above the nine o'clock – three o'clock line is prohibited. Fronds should be removed only once they turn brown or become broken or are disrupting flow of pedestrian/vehicular traffic or are hanging on architectural structures. Fruit pods shall be removed prior to development. Tarpaulins shall be used in areas where date palms and other palm fruits may stain sidewalks & pavement including, but not limited to, pool decks. Contractor shall be responsible for the removal of all palm fruit stains. Contractor shall sterilize all pruning equipment prior to pruning the next palm, paying careful attention when pruning Medjool, Sylvester, Reclinata and Canary Palms.

4) WEEDS AND GRASSES - All groundcover, turf areas, shrub beds & tree rings shall be kept reasonably free of weeds and grasses and be neatly cultivated and maintained in an orderly fashion at all times. This may be accomplished by carefully applied applications of pre-& post emergent herbicides as part of fertilizer mixtures and post-emergent herbicide spot treatments on an as-needed basis. Condition of turf is to be determined by the DISTRICT at its sole discretion. All shrub and bed areas shall be maintained each mowing service by removing all weeds, trash and other undesirable material and debris (leaf and other) to keep the area neat and tidy. This is to be accomplished through hand pulling or the careful application of a post-emergent herbicide. AT NO TIME SHALL POST-EMERGENT HERBICIDES BE PERMITTED WHEN WEEDS HAVE ESTABLISHED THEMSELVES AS TO DOMINATE PLANTING BEDS. HAND PULLING MUST BE PERFORMED.

NON-SELECTIVE, POST-EMERGENT HERBICIDES SHALL NEVER BE USED TO CONTROL WEED/SOD GROWTH AROUND STRUCTURES OF ANY TYPE (I.E. STREET SIGNS, UTILITY BOXES, STREET LIGHTS, PAVEMENT, TREE RINGS, ETC.) THE FIRST OFFENSE WILL RESULT IN A VERBAL WARNING; THE SECOND OFFENSE WILL RESULT IN A SECOND VERBAL WARNING AND THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS FOR THE DISTRICT WILL BE NOTIFIED; THE THIRD OFFENSE MAY TERMINATE THIS CONTRACT FOR CAUSE AT THE DISTRICT'S DISCRETION. CONTRACTOR WILL BE HELD RESPONSIBLE FOR THE REPLACEMENT OF ALL TURF DAMAGED BY THE APPLICATION OR OVERSPRAY OF HERBICIDES (SELECTIVE OR NON-SELECTIVE).

The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the replacement of ornamental plants killed or damaged by herbicide application. All fence lines shall be kept clear of landscape shrubs growing through, weeds, undesirable vines and overhanging limbs.

5) MAINTENANCE OF PAVED AREAS – All paved areas (including, but not limited to, pool deck pavers, other paver surfaces, sidewalk expansion joints, curb

and gutters, curb and gutter expansion joints, bike lane edges along roadways) shall be kept weed & debris free. This may be accomplished by mechanical means (line trimmer) or by applications of post/pre-emergent herbicides. Weeds greater than two (2) inches in height or width shall be pulled from paved areas, not sprayed. No sprays with dyes may be used on any paved areas. Contractor is not to use non-selective herbicides to eradicate weeds in curb line expansion joints where the chemical can travel back into the turf causing regularly spaced dead patches behind the curbs and sidewalks.

6) CLEAN UP – At no time will CONTRACTOR leave the premises after completion of any work in any type of disarray. All clippings, trimmings, debris, dirt or any other unsightly material shall be removed promptly upon completion of work. CONTRACTOR shall use his own waste disposal methods, never the property dumpsters. Grass clippings shall be blown off sidewalks, streets and curbs within a relatively short time frame and are not to be left for more than two hours, unless otherwise noted above. Also grass clippings shall be blown into turf areas, never into mulched bed areas or tree rings as these are to be maintained free of grass clippings. Grass clippings at highly trafficked areas (i.e., tennis courts, clubhouse sidewalks, pool areas, walking trails, etc.) shall be blown off immediately after mowing and edging have taken place. NO CLIPPINGS SHALL BE BLOWN DOWN CURB INLETS.

7) **REPLACEMENT OF PLANT MATERIAL** – Trees and shrubs in a state of decline should immediately be brought to the attention of the DISTRICT. Dead or unsightly plant material shall be removed upon notification of the DISTRICT. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for replacement if due to his negligence. New plant material shall be guaranteed for a period of one (1) year for trees and ninety (90) days for shrubs, ground cover and lawn after final acceptance.

PART 2

FERTILIZATION

Any fertilizer ordinance in place for Clay County specifically banning fertilizers during a specific season(s), will be followed. It is required that those practices outlined in the GIBMP guidelines be followed. Highlights are listed below.

NO PERSON SHALL APPLY FERTILIZERS CONTAINING NITROGEN AND/OR PHOSPHORUS TO TURF AND/OR LANDSCAPE PLANTS DURING ONE OR MORE OF THE FOLLOWING EVENTS: i) IF IT IS RAINING AT THE APPLICATION SITE, OR ii) WITHIN THE TIME PERIOD DURING WHICH A FLOOD WATCH OR WARNING, OR A TROPICAL STORM WATCH OR WARNING, OR A HURRICANE WATCH OR WARNING IS IN EFFECT FOR ANY PORTION OF CLAY COUNTY, ISSUED BY THE NATIONAL WEATHER SERVICE, OR iii) WITHIN 36 HOURS PRIOR TO A RAIN EVENT GREATER THAN OR EQUAL TO 2 INCHES IN A 24 HOUR PERIOD IS LIKELY.

For purposes of bidding and until a soil test is provided to indicate otherwise, all turf shall be fertilized according to the following IFAS Guidelines for a high maintenance level for Florida turf: (per GIBMP guidelines and University of Florida IFAS Extension).

All Bahia Areas:

March	A complete fertilizer based on soil tests + Pre M
April	Nitrogen (soluble Nitrogen applied at 0.5 lbs. N/1000 SF)
June	SRN (Slow Release Nitrogen applied at 1.0 lbs. N/1000 SF)
October	A complete fertilizer based on soil tests

All St. Augustine Sod:

February	A complete fertilizer based on soil tests + PreM
April	Nitrogen (soluble Nitrogen applied at 0.5 lbs. N/1000 SF
May	SRN (Slow Release Nitrogen applied at 1.0 lbs. N/1000 SF
July	SRN (Slow Release Nitrogen applied at 1.0 lbs. N/1000 SF
September	SRN (Slow Release Nitrogen applied at 1.0 lbs. N/1000 SF
November	A complete fertilizer based on soil tests

All Bermuda Sod:

Apr	A complete fertilizer based on soil tests + PreM
June	SRN (Slow Release Nitrogen applied at 1.0 lbs. N/1000 SF
Jul	FE ferrous sulfate (2oz/3-5 gal water/1000 sq. ft.)
Sept	A complete fertilizer based on soil tests

ALL Zoysia Sod:

April	A complete fertilizer based on soil tests + PreM
June	SRN (Slow Release Nitrogen applied at 1.0 lbs. N/1000 SF
Sept	A complete fertilizer based on soil tests

Prior to final fertilization selection, a complete soil test should be performed to test for soil pH as well as N, P & K levels. Should change be of merit, the Contractor shall notify the District in writing prior to the implementation of such change At times environmental conditions may require additional applications of nutrients, augmenting the above fertilization programs to ensure that turf areas are kept uniformly GREEN, healthy and in top condition. It shall be the responsibility of the contractor to determine specific needs and requirements and notify the resident project representative when these additional applications are needed.

Fertilizers containing iron shall be immediately removed from all hard surfaces to avoid staining before the sprinklers are activated after application of the fertilizer. Any stains caused by a failure to do so will be the responsibility of the contractor to remove.

Fertilizer shall be applied in a uniform manner. If streaking of the turf occurs, correction will be required immediately at no additional cost to owner. Fertilizer shall be swept/blown off of all hard surfaces onto lawns or beds in order to avoid staining. IT SHALL BE THE CONTRACTOR'S REPONSIBILITY TO REMOVE ANY STAINS FROM ANY HARD SURFACES ON THE PROPERTY CAUSED BY THEIR MISHANDLING OF FERTILIZER. Fertilizer shall not be applied within ten (10) feet of the landward extent of any surface water. Spreader deflector shields are required when applying fertilizer by use of any broadcast or rotary spreader. Deflector shields must be positioned such that fertilizer granules are deflected away from all impervious surfaces and surface waters.

SHRUB, TREE & GROUNDCOVER FERTILIZATION:

For purposes of bidding, All SHRUBS, GROUNDCOVERS and TREES shall be fertilized according to the following specifications:

3 Times a year – (March, June, October)

A complete fertilizer (formula will vary according to soil test results) at a rate of 4-6 lbs. N/1000 sq. ft. /year. (A minimum 50% Nitrogen shall be in a slow-release form)

Fertilizer shall be applied by hand in a uniform manner, broadcast around the plants, but never in direct contact with stems or trunks. Fertilizer shall never be piled around plants. All fertilizer remaining on the leaves of the plants is to be brushed or blown off. IT IS THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY TO REPLACE ANY PLANT MATERIAL DAMAGED BY FERTILIZATION BURN DUE TO HIS MISHANDLING OF PRODUCT.

PALM FERTILIZATION:

All Palms shall receive 1 ½ pounds of 8N-2P2O5-12K2O+4Mg with micronutrients <u>per</u> <u>100 SF of palm canopy</u> four times per year (March, June, September & November). 100% of the N, K & Mg <u>MUST</u> be in slow release form. All micronutrients must be in water soluble form. Fertilizer shall be broadcast evenly under the dripline of the canopy but must be kept at least 6" from the palm trunk.

Fertilizer shall not be billed equally on a monthly basis but invoiced the month after application.

<u>CONTRACTOR shall provide the DISTRICT with all fertilizer analysis tags from the</u> <u>fertilizer in order to verify correct formulation and quantity.</u> Payment will not be made until correct quantity and formulation has been verified and applied. CONTRACTOR must notify the DISTRICT five (5) working days in advance of the day the property is scheduled to be fertilized. Failure on the part of the CONTRACTOR to so notify the DISTRICT may result in the CONTRACTOR forfeiting any and all rights to payment for the applications made without notification.

PART 3

PEST CONTROL

Insects and Disease in Turf Insect and disease control spraying in turf shall be provided by the Contractor every month with additional spot treatment as needed. During the weekly inspections the Contractor is responsible for the identification and eradication/control of disease and insect damage including but not limited to: scale, mites, fungus, chinch bugs, grubs, nematodes, fire ants, mole crickets, etc. Contractor shall pay for chemicals. Please list all chemicals that you will include in your fertilizer applications in the space allocated for "formula" under the fertilization section in the bid form. Also include the cost of these chemicals as part of the fertilizer application. Any anticipated additional treatments shall be included in the Pest Control portion of the bid form.

Insects and Disease Control for Trees, Palms and Plants The Contractor is responsible for treatment of insects and diseases for all plants. The appropriate insecticide or fungicide will be applied in accordance with state and local regulations, and as weather and environmental conditions permit. Contractor shall pay for chemicals. There are several afflictions that may be detrimental to the health of many trees and palms. Contractor will be fully responsible in the treatment of such afflictions. At the District's discretion, this may include the guarterly inoculation of all palms susceptible to Lethal Yellowing and/or Texas Phoenix Palm Decline. The cost of these inoculations should be included as a separate line item in your Pest Control price. Contractor is to identify those species of palms susceptible and supply a list of species and quantities with proposal. Each susceptible palm shall receive quarterly injections. Each injection site/valve can be used only twice. The third quarterly injection requires a new valve and injection site. Contractor is asked to provide cost per injection (material & labor) multiplied by quantity of susceptible palms multiplied by four inoculations per year in bid form. The District reserves the right to subcontract out any and all OTC Injection events. This will not be included in the Contract Amount.

The Contractor is required to inspect all landscaped areas during each visit for indication of pest problems. When control is necessary, it is the responsibility of the Contractor to properly apply low toxicity and target-specific pesticide. If pesticides are necessary, they will be applied on a spot treatment basis when wind drift is a threat.

Careful inspection of the property on each visit is crucial to maintaining a successful program. It is the Contractor's full responsibility to ensure that the person inspecting the property is properly trained in recognizing the symptoms of both insect infestations and plant pathogen damage (funguses, bacteria, etc.). It is also the Contractor's responsibility to treat these conditions in an expedient manner.

It shall also be the Contractor's responsibility to furnish the resident project representative with a copy of the Pest Management Report (a copy of which is included), which he is to complete at every service as well as all certifications (including BMP Certifications) of all pesticide applicators. Contractor shall familiarize himself with all current regulations regarding the applications of pesticides and fertilizers.

If at any time the District should become aware of any pest problems it will be the Contractor's responsibility to treat pest within five (5) working days of the date of notification.

Fire Ant Control Contractor is required to inspect property each visit for evidence of fire ant mounds and immediately treat upon evidence of active mounds. In small areas control can be achieved by individual mound treatment. Active mounds in larger turf areas will require broadcast application of bait. Contractor shall be responsible to knock down and spread out soil once mounds are dead.

For informational purposes only, Contractor is asked to provide the cost for the annual application of Top Choice in all finished landscape areas at the Community Center grounds. UNLESS OTHERWISE DIRECTED, ONLY THOSE AREAS COVERED BY AUTOMATIC IRRIGATION ARE TO BE INCLUDED IN THIS NUMBER. This is not to include lake banks behind the residential properties or between ponds and conservation areas.

Pest Control will not be included as a standard line item in each monthly billing but shall be invoiced as a separate line item the month after service is rendered.

Pest Control shall be included in the Contract Amount.

IRRIGATION SYSTEM MONITORING AND MAINTENANCE

Irrigation System. Contractor shall inspect and test the irrigation system components within the limits of the District a minimum of one (1) time per month. Areas shall include all of the existing irrigation systems to date.

These inspections shall include:

- A. Irrigation Controllers
 - 1. Semi-automatic start of the automatic irrigation controller
 - 2. Check for proper operation
 - 3. Program necessary timing changes based on site conditions & time DST
 - 4. Lubricate and adjust mechanical components
 - 5. Test back up programming support devices
 - 6. Ensure the proper operation of each automatic rain shutoff device. If none, provide proposal for the installation to be included in the 30-day irrigation audit.
- B. Water Sources
 - 1. Visual inspection of water source
 - 2. Clean all ground strainers and filters
 - Test each pump at design capacities <u>weekly</u>; inform District Manager of any problems immediately. This is to minimize the time a water source is down. Contractor shall also confirm weekly that all backflow preventers are on and operating properly, if applicable.
 - 4. Test automatic protection devices
- C. Irrigation Systems
 - 1. Manual test and inspection of each irrigation zone in its entirety.
 - 2. Clean and raise heads as necessary
 - 3. Adjust arc pattern and distance for required coverage areas
 - 4. Clean out irrigation valve boxes
- D. Report
 - 1. Irrigation operation time
 - 2. Irrigation start time
 - 3. Maintenance items performed
 - 4. General comment and recommendations

The above list is for routine maintenance and adjustment of the existing irrigation system components. Locating and repairing or replacing automatic valves or control wires and irrigation controller or pump repairs as well as other larger scale repairs are to be considered additional items. Contractor shall provide a list of additional charges and pricing for such items other than routine maintenance as a separate price from this bid.

Routine irrigation maintenance is to be completed monthly. Each zone is to be turned on and operated for as long as necessary to verify proper operation. Each head, seal, nozzle, and strainer are to be inspected for adjustment and shall be aligned, packed, cleaned and repaired as necessary. Shrubs, groundcovers, and turf around sprinkler heads shall be trimmed to maintain maximum clearance at all times for the greatest coverage. It shall be the Contractor's responsibility to ensure all drip tubing is covered with mulch prior to Contractor leaving the property. All below ground repairs including valves, pumps and wiring require an estimate for all such repairs. Upon written approval from Management, Contractor shall proceed. In the event of an emergency, Contractor shall make a diligent effort to contact, with the approximate price or estimate of repairs, Management or their assign prior to making such repair.

Upon being awarded contract, Contractor shall have a period of thirty (30) days from date of commencement to perform a thorough audit of the entire irrigation system listing items that need repair/replacement in order for the system to operate properly. A separate audit may be provided by the Contractor listing those items that would improve the irrigation system. Any action taken regarding the Irrigation Audit will be at the Board of Supervisors' discretion.

Assuming the Board of Supervisors approves the repairs listed in the 30-day audit and after such repairs have been made, after the thirty (30) day period has expired and for the duration of the contract, Contractor shall assume responsibility for any and all unreported maintenance deficiencies, including parts and labor, associated with the irrigation system of 2 inches or less, to include sprinkler heads, nozzles, drip, main and delivery lines and any associated fittings. Said repairs shall be performed immediately. The District Manager shall be notified what day and time of the week the irrigation tech will be available servicing the community. The Contractor will keep detailed irrigation reports consisting of run times and correct operation of system. A copy of this report will be maintained by the Contractor and a copy delivered to the District Manager or his designee, along with the weekly report. At no time shall the Contractor leave the property knowing of the need for a repair and not reporting it.

Watering schedules shall meet all government regulations, and zone times will be adjusted depending on job conditions, climactic conditions and all watering restrictions of Clay County or any other governmental agencies. It is the responsibility of the Contractor to ensure the turf and plant material remains healthy. If the Contractor finds that the irrigation system cannot adequately cover the District in the allotted time, it will be the Contractor's responsibility to bring this to the attention of the District representative and apply for a variance. <u>Violations and/or fines imposed by any local or state agency will be deducted from the Contractor's monthly payment.</u>

Emergency service shall be available after normal working hours and an emergency telephone number will be provided to Management or their assign. Broken mainlines and irrigation valves stuck in the "open" position are to be considered emergencies.

Freeze Protection. The Contractor shall describe ability and cost per application to provide freeze protection for pumps/wells.

PART 5

INSTALLATION OF MULCH

<u>After prior approval by the Board of Supervisors</u>, Contractor shall top dress all currently landscaped areas as shown on the maintenance map (landscaped beds, tree rings) with Grade "A" Medium Pine Bark Mulch up to twice per year during the months of April and October. In doing so, Contractor shall ensure that all mulched areas are <u>brought to a</u> minimum depth of three (3) inches **after compaction**.

Contractor is responsible for all necessary clean up related to this procedure.

Contractor agrees to provide reasonably neat and defined lines along edges of all mulched areas. In addition to the aesthetics of this, it is also done to facilitate mechanical edging of these areas. Additionally, Contractor shall properly trench all bed lines adjacent to concrete surfaces. Trenches shall be 3" deep and beveled. Mulched beds on slopes adjacent to turf shall also be trenched to a depth of 3" & beveled to reduce mulch washout. This procedure has not been practiced in the past and Contractor is to include any additional labor in the cost of the mulch for all trenching. Mulch shall not be piled around tree trunks or bases of plants. Any mulch "volcanoes" around tree trunks shall be corrected immediately at no additional cost to Owner.

Contractor agrees to ensure that mulch caught in plant material will be shaken or blown from plants, so that upon completion there is no plant material left covered with mulch.

If, after installation is complete and it is determined that additional mulch is required to attain the required <u>total depth</u> of 3", sufficient mulch shall be supplied by Contractor at no additional cost to District.

<u>This item will not be included in the contract amount and shall be invoiced</u> <u>separately the month after service is rendered. Contractor shall provide a price</u> <u>per cubic yard and estimated quantities to be installed per top dressing (based on</u> <u>his own field measurements) and shall submit with bid.</u>

The District reserves the right to subcontract out any and all mulching events.

PART 6

ANNUAL INSTALLATION

Planting of Annuals. After prior approval by the Board of Supervisors, Contractor shall replace approximately ______ annuals in 4" pots up to four (4) times per year in designated areas and maintain annuals to ensure a healthy appearance. The Contractor will have the type of annual to be installed pre-approved by the District or its representative in writing. An Annual Options Presentation for the entire year stipulating plant options and timing for each rotation shall be submitted to the District shortly after execution of contract in order for the District or its representative to select annual choice(s). Annuals shall be hand watered at the time of installation. The Contractor will remove dead or dying annuals before the appearance of such annuals could be reasonably described as an eyesore. If the beds are left bare prior to the next planting, the Contractor will keep such beds free of weeds at all times until the next planting rotation occurs. Timing shall be centered on a holiday rotation being planted no later than the end of the first week of December and rotate accordingly every three months. (Jan., April, July, and Oct.)

Annual installation price shall include the removal of all dead annuals prior to placing new plants, regular deadheading, necessary soil adjustments, soil additives, fungicides, and **monthly slow-release** nutritional requirements **at no additional cost to District**. Contractor shall replace at his expense any annual that dies, fails to thrive or is damaged by insects/disease. Contractor shall also include in the spring rotation (March) **at no additional cost to District**, a major renovation of all annual beds. A potting mix specifically blended for annuals shall be used at this time and shall be replenished as necessary prior to each change out throughout the year. All annual beds shall be raised at least eight inches and covered with a layer of Pine Fines 1" thick. <u>All this shall be provided at no additional cost to the District</u>.

This item will not be included in the contract amount. Contractor shall provide a price per 4" plant as requested and shall submit with bid. This work shall be invoiced separately in the month after service is rendered.

The District reserves the right to subcontract out any and all annual installation events.

[END OF SECTION]

EXHIBIT A

BID QUOTE FORM

ROOKERY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

ROOKERY COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT LANDSCAPE & IRRIGATION MAINTENANCE INVITATION FOR QUOTE

Having carefully examined the specifications and having thoroughly inspected said property, the undersigned proposes to furnish all labor, materials and proper equipment for the entire scope of work, in accordance with said specifications, for the sum of:

PART 1

General Landscape Maintenance	\$	Yr.
- Storm Cleanup \$/hr.		
- Tree Staking/Strapping Removal \$ / per tre	e (based on plan details)	
- Freeze Protection (description of ability)		
\$/application		
- Hand Watering		
<pre>\$/hr. for employee with hand-held hose</pre>		
<pre>\$/hr. for water truck/tanker</pre>		
These prices are informational only and NOT to be inc	luded in General Landso	cape Maintenance Cost

<u>PART 2</u>

____Yr.

 Fertilization
 (All labor and materials)
 § _____Yr

 (Include any and all turf pesticide/herbicide mixtures you intend to use throughout the year)

	ST. AUGUSTINE (per specifications in Part 2)					
MONTH	FORMULA	APPLICATION RATE	TOTAL POUNDS	COST PER		
		(LBS. N/1000 SF)	PRODUCT TO BE APPLIED	APPLICATION		
			APPLIED			
	Z	OYSIA (per specifications	in Part 2)	<u> </u>		
MONTH	FORMULA	APPLICATION RATE	TOTAL POUNDS	COST PER		
		(LBS. N/1000 SF)	PRODUCT TO BE	APPLICATION		
			APPLIED			
				+		
		AHIA (per specifications i				
MONTH	I FORMULA	APPLICATION RA				
		(LBS. N/1000 SI	F) PRODUCT TO APPLIED			
			ATTLIED			
		×				

	BERMUDA (per specifications in Part 2)					
MONTH						
		(LBS. N/1000 SF)	PRODUCT TO BE	APPLICATION		
			APPLIED			

	ORNAMENTALS (per specifications in Part 2)						
MONTH	FORMULA	COST PER					
		(LBS. N/1000 SF)	PRODUCT TO BE	APPLICATION			
			APPLIED				

PALMS (per specifications in Part 2)				
MONTH	FORMULA	APPLICATION RATE	TOTAL POUNDS	COST PER
		(LBS. /PALM)	PRODUCT TO BE	APPLICATION
			APPLIED	

Please list any additional fertilization for those plant materials requiring specialized applications.

SPECIALTY PLANT MATERIALS				
MONTH	FORMULA	PLANTS TO BE	TOTAL POUNDS	COST PER
		FERTILIZED	PRODUCT TO BE	APPLICATION
		(i.e., Crapes, Loropetalum)	APPLIED	

The totals in the "Cost per application" column should equal your Total Fertilization Cost for the year.

<u>PART 3</u>

Pest Control (All labor and materials) **Yr.**

(if entire pesticide allowance is required) *

\$__

* This is an allowance for treatments of trees, ornamentals, groundcovers, etc. and should include only those pesticides/herbicides not already included in the turf fertilizer section. This dollar amount will not be equally divided amongst the monthly invoices. The portion of the allowance used on any particular event shall be billed <u>the month after</u> services are rendered. Contractor shall continue to be responsible for the eradication/control of all weeds, pests and diseases after the allowance listed above has been exhausted.

OTC Injections will be performed at the discretion of the District's BOS (This shall not be included in either the Pest Control cost listed above nor shall it be included in the Grand Total or Contract Amount.)

OTC Injections (All labor and materials)

\$ _____ /Yr. (based on quantities below)
(OTC injections per specs - do not include in Grand Total)

Palm Type Palm Qty # of Inoculations per quarter per palm (based on size) (i.e. (2) inoculations per large Canary Palm per 1/4, etc.)	Cost per Individual Inoculation	Total Cost per Year (4x per year)
--	---------------------------------------	---

The CDD reserves the right to subcontract out any and all OTC Injection events.

PART 4

Freeze Protection (description of ability	/)	
 \$ /application (do not inclu	ide in Irrigation Total or G	rand Total)
After hours emergency service hourly r pump & wells, etc.)	rate \$ /hr. (i.e. brok	en mainlines,
Contractor shall provide a list of additional cha outine maintenance as a separate price from th		ns other than

<u>PART 5</u>

Based on quantities determined by Contractor's field measurements at time Contractor shall install:	of bidding,
CY Pine Nuggets per specs for the first top-dressing at \$ April)	_/CY (app.
And	
CY Pine Nuggets per specs for the second top-dressing at \$ October)	/CY (app.
Installation of Pine Nuggets (All labor and materials) \$ (if both topdressings are performed - <u>do not include in Grand Total</u>)	<u>/</u> Yr.
Additionally, based on quantities determined by Contractor's field measure of bidding, Contractor shall install:	ments at time
Bales Pine Straw Mulch per specs for the first top-dressing at \$ (app. April)	/bale
And Bales Pine Straw Mulch per specs for the second top-dressing at \$ (app. October)	/bale
Installation of Pine Straw Mulch (All labor and materials) \$	
(if both topdressings are performed - <u>do not include in Grand Total</u>)	
Each top-dressing shall leave all beds with a depth of 3" The DISTRICT reserves the right to subcontract any mulching event to an	outside vendor
<u>PART 6</u>	

Annual Installation (All labor and materials) <u>The DISTRICT reserves the right to subcontract any annual installation event to an</u> <u>outside vendor</u>

Contractor shall install 300(4" pots) annuals up to four (4) times per year per specs at the direction of the District at \$____/annual

\$_____/rotation

\$_____/Yr. (if all rotations are performed - <u>do not include in Grand Total</u>)

GRAND TOTAL (PARTS 1, 2, 3 & 4 - This is what contract will be written for)

\$/Yr.		
FIRST ANNUAL RENEWAL	\$	/Yr.
SECOND ANNUAL RENEWAL	\$	/Yr.
Contractor/Firm Name		_
Firm Address		-
City/State/Zip		_
Phone Number Fax Number		_
Name and Title of Representative _	(Please Print)	_
Representative's Signature		_
Date		

<u>EXHIBIT B</u> Landscape Maintenance Map

